

**KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~7th~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.02  
Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~6th~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.02  
For Missouri Retail Service Area

Deleted: Sixth

Deleted: Fifth

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
RULES AND REGULATIONS  
ELECTRIC

	<u>Sheet No.</u>
<b>3. SUPPLYING ELECTRIC SERVICE</b>	
.01 Supplying of Electric Service	1.10
.02 Class of Service	1.10
.03 Line Construction	1.10
.04 Prior Indebtedness of Customer	1.10
.05 Customer to Furnish Right-of-Way	1.10
.06 Access to Customer Premises	1.11
.07 Delivery of Electric Service to Customer	1.11
.08 Company Responsibility	1.11
.09 Continuity of Service	1.11
.10 Curtailment, Interruption or Suspension of Service	1.12
.11 Restoration of Service	1.13
.12 Application of Rate Schedule	1.13
.13 Discontinuance of Electric Service	1.13
.14 Reconnection of Electric Service	1.14
.15 Refusal to Serve	1.14
.16 Property of the Company	1.14
.17 Liability of Company	1.14
.18 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations	1.14
<b>4. TAKING ELECTRIC SERVICE</b>	
.01 Customer's Installation	1.14
.02 Protection Equipment	1.15
.03 Customer Responsibility	1.15
.04 Standards and Approvals	1.15
.05 Dangerous or Disturbing Uses	1.15
.06 Inspections and Recommendations	1.16
.07 Increasing Connected Load	1.16
.08 Facilities Location	1.16
.09 Protection of Company's Property	1.17
.10 Tampering with Company Facilities	1.17
.11 Attachments to Company's Facilities	1.17
.12 Indemnity to Company	1.17
.13 Proration of Demand Charges	1.18
.14 Parallel Operations	1.18
<u>.15 Other Terms and Conditions</u>	<u>1.18</u>

Issued: January 7, 2022 Effective: February 6, 2022  
Issued by: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

Deleted: May 9, 2017

Deleted: June 8, 2017

Internal Use Only

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

Deleted: KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~4th~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.03

Deleted: Third

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~3rd~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.03

Deleted: Second

For Missouri Retail Service Area

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
RULES AND REGULATIONS  
ELECTRIC

5. MULTIPLE OCCUPANCY PREMISES	<u>Sheet No.</u>
.01 Individual Metering for Separate Premises	1.18
.02 Public Service Metering for Lessor	1.18
.03 Resale and Redistribution	1.19
.04 Rent Inclusion by Lessor	1.20
.05 Present Resale Practices	1.20
.06 Present Redistribution Practice	1.21
.07 Renovation	1.21
.08 Wholesale Sales	1.21
6. METERING	
.01 Meter Installation	1.21
.02 Multiple Metering	1.22
.03 Multiple Occupancy Buildings	1.22
.04 Meter Reading	1.22
.05 Meter Seals	1.23
.06 Estimated Billing Due to Unread Meters	1.23
.07 Accuracy and Tests	1.23
.08 Evidence of Consumption	1.23
.09 Billing Adjustments	1.24
.10 Inquires	1.24B
.11 Non-Standard Metering Service	1.24D
7. CHOICE AND APPLICATION OF RATE SCHEDULES	
.01 Posting	1.25
.02 Choice by Customer	1.25
.03 Assistance by Company	1.25
.04 Change of Rate Schedules	1.25
8. BILLING AND PAYMENT	
.01 Billing Period	1.26
.02 Payment of Bills	1.26
.03 Default	1.27
.04 Mailing Bills	1.27
.05 Reconnection Charge	1.27
.06 Partial Payment	1.27
.07 Return Payment Charge	1.28
.08 Collection Charge	1.28
.09 OPT Out Provisions	1.28

Deleted: Non-MEEIA

Issued: January 7, 2022

Effective: February 6, 2022

Deleted: May 9, 2017

Issued by: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President

1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

Deleted: June 8, 2017

Internal Use Only

**KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~3rd~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.04A  
 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~2nd~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.04A

Deleted: Second

Deleted: First

For Missouri Retail Service Area

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 RULES AND REGULATIONS  
 ELECTRIC

	<u>Sheet No.</u>
<b>15. MUNICIPAL STREET LIGHTING SERVICE</b>	
.01 Terms and Conditions	1.50
.02 Municipality Responsibility	1.50
.03 Company Service Responsibility	1.50
.04 Street Lighting System	1.50
.05 Street Lamps Exhibit	1.51
.06 Applicable Rate Schedule	1.51
.07 Additions to the Street Lighting System	1.51
.08 Changes and Removals	1.51
.09 Protection of Company Property	1.52
.10 Municipality Payment Liability	1.52
.11 Force Majeure	1.52
.12 Municipality Purchase of Street Lighting System	1.53
.13 Municipality Purchase of Electric Energy	1.53
<b>16. MUNICIPAL TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAL SERVICE</b>	
.01 Terms and Conditions	1.54
.02 Municipality Traffic Control Responsibility	1.54
.03 Company Service Responsibility	1.54
.04 Traffic Control System	1.54
.05 Traffic Control Signal Service	1.55
.06 Applicable Rate Schedule for Traffic Control Signal Service	1.55
.07 Additions to Traffic Control System	1.56
.08 Changes and Removals of Traffic Control System	1.56
.09 Municipality Payment Liability	1.57
.10 Force Majeure	1.57
.11 Municipality Purchase of Traffic Control System	1.57
.12 Municipality Purchase of Electric Energy	1.58
<b>17. EMERGENCY ENERGY CONSERVATION PLAN</b>	
.01 Anticipated Emergency	1.59
<del>.02 Plan Components</del>	<del>1.59</del>
<del>.03 Customer Notification</del>	<del>1.60</del>
<del>.04 Daily Monitoring</del>	<del>1.60</del>
<del>.05 Liability of Company</del>	<del>1.60</del>
<del>.06 Plan Maintenance</del>	<del>1.60</del>

Deleted: 02

Deleted: 59

Deleted: .03 Exempt Facilities 1.59¶

Deleted: .05 First Stage Conservation 1.60¶

.06 Second Stage Conservation 1.61¶

.07 Mandatory Curtailment 1.62¶

Deleted: 08

Deleted: 63

Issued: January 7, 2022 Effective: February 6, 2022  
 Issued by: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

Deleted: September 8, 2015

Deleted: October 8, 2015

Internal Use Only

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~4th~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.12

Cancelling P.S.C. MO. 2 ~~3rd~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.12

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  
APPLYING TO ELECTRIC SERVICE**

**3. SUPPLYING ELECTRIC SERVICE (Continued)**

3.10 CURTAILMENT, INTERRUPTION OR SUSPENSION OF SERVICE: The company shall have the right to curtail (including voltage reduction), interrupt or suspend electric service to the Customer for temporary periods as may be necessary for the inspection, maintenance, alteration, change, replacement or repair of electric facilities, or for the preservation or restoration of its system operations or of operations on the interconnected electric systems of which the Company's system is a part. During any period of emergency conditions on the Company's system or on the interconnected electric systems of which the Company's system is a part,

During any period of emergency conditions on the Company's system or on the interconnected electric systems of which the Company's system is a part, the Company will execute the Emergency Energy Conservation Plan identified in Section 17.

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY

**Deleted:** Third

**Deleted:** Second

**Deleted:** ☒

**Deleted:** Rate Areas No. 1 and No. 3

**Deleted:** , the Company shall have the right of selective curtailment, interruption, suspension or restoration of electric service, both within and without its system and as among Customers served directly from its system, through the operation of protective devices or equipment, or by other means deemed by it to be appropriate to preserve or restore the operational integrity of any portion of its generating resources and transmission facilities or those of the interconnected electric systems of which the Company's system is a part. During the continuance of any such emergency conditions and depending upon the operating characteristics of the Company's system and its interconnected electric systems, the nature of the deficiency, and to the extent of time availability, the Company's procedures for curtailment, interruption or suspension to Customers served directly from the Company's system shall generally provide that:¶

¶ <#>interruptible electric service will be suspended;¶

¶ <#>voluntary reduction of use of electric service will be requested directly by the Company of major use customers and will be requested by the Company of all customers by public appeals through the news media;¶

¶ <#>selective curtailment, interruption or suspension of service will be made by the Company either manually or through the automatic operation of protective devices or equipment pursuant to load shedding programs coordinated by the Company with other regional interconnected electric systems; and¶

¶ <#>news media will, insofar as practicable, be kept informed of the Company's progress in the restoration of electric service during the period of such emergency conditions.¶

¶ The Company, in its sole judgment, may effect any additional or alternative procedures during the period of such emergency conditions as it deems necessary or more appropriate in the preservation or restoration of electric service on its system and the interconnected systems of which the Company's system is a part; provided that, if such emergency conditions would

**Formatted:** Indent: Left: 0"

**Formatted:** Font: (Default) Arial

**Formatted:** Indent: Left: 0.63", First line: 0", Tab stops: Not at 0"

**Formatted:** Indent: First line: 0.63"

**Deleted:** June 2, 1978

**Deleted:** July 12, 1978

**Deleted:** L. C. Rasmussen¶  
Vice President

**Deleted:** 1201 Walnut

**Deleted:** 64106

DATE OF ISSUE: January 7, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: February 6, 2022  
ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, Mo. 64105

Public

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~4th~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.13

Cancelling P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~3rd~~ Original Sheet No. 1.13

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY EVERGY METRO, INC

**Deleted:** Third

**Deleted:** Second

**Deleted:** Rate Areas No. 1 and No. 3

**GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  
APPLYING TO ELECTRIC SERVICE**

**3. SUPPLYING ELECTRIC SERVICE (Continued)**

- 3.11 RESTORATION OF SERVICE: In all cases of interruption or suspension of service, the Company will make reasonable efforts to restore service without unnecessary delay. Labor disturbances affecting the Company or involving employees of the Company may be resolved by the Company at its sole discretion.
- 3.12 APPLICATION OF RATE SCHEDULE: Neither interruption nor suspension of electric service by the Company shall relieve the Customer from charges provided for in the Customer's service agreement.
- 3.13 DISCONTINUANCE OF ELECTRIC SERVICE: The Customer shall at all times observe and perform his obligations to the Company under his service agreement. The Company shall have the right to discontinue electric service to a Customer and remove its facilities or any portion thereof from the Customer's premises upon any default by the Customer of any provision thereof. The Company reserves the right, in addition to any and all other legal remedies, to refuse to reconnect electric service to any Customer disconnected hereunder until such default shall have been remedied by the Customer. Except in cases of (a) tampering in violation of Rule 4.10 hereof, (b) dangerous or disturbing uses in violation of Rule 4.05, or (c) an order or directive of the Commission or other governmental agency or court requiring the discontinuance of service, the Company shall give to the Customer written notice of its intention to discontinue such electric service. The contents of such notice shall be as determined by the Company, or as required by general order or rule of the Commission. Such notice shall be mailed to or served upon the Customer as may be provided for by general order or rule of the Commission or other applicable state law.

**Deleted:** 3.10 CURTAILMENT, INTERRUPTION OR SUSPENSION OF SERVICE (continued)¶

¶ substantially more than two hours, then, to the extent that the Company's system resources and facilities are available to serve a portion but not all of the less critical categories of its system electric loads under such coordinated plans, the Company will manually rotate service among such less critical categories of loads served directly from its system so as to limit the continuous period of interruption to such loads. Upon restoration of the operational integrity of the interconnected electric systems of which the Company's system is a part, the re-energizing of the Company's system or those parts upon which service has been curtailed, interrupted or suspended will proceed as rapidly as practicable, dependent upon the availability of generation and/or the stability of the interconnected electric systems.¶

DATE OF ISSUE: January 7, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: February 6, 2022  
ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, Mo. 64105

**Deleted:** June 2, 1978

**Deleted:** July 12, 1978

**Deleted:** L. C. Rasmussen¶  
Vice President

**Deleted:** 1201 Walnut

**Deleted:** 64106

Public

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 4th Revised Sheet No. 1.18

**Deleted:** Third

Cancelling P.S.C. MO. No. 2 3rd Revised Sheet No. 1.18

**Deleted:** Second

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  
APPLYING TO ELECTRIC SERVICE**

**4. TAKING ELECTRIC SERVICE (continued)**

4.13 PRORATION OF DEMAND CHARGES: In the event the Customer's electric load requirements are temporarily curtailed or substantially reduced because of damage to or destruction of the Customer's premises or equipment due to an Act of God or because of a labor strike of the Customer's own employees employed at the premises of the Customer, the Company shall, upon request by the Customer, prorate the demand charges which would otherwise be applicable for the electric service supplied to the Customer during not more than six (6) months of curtailed or reduced load requirements of the Customer.

4.14 PARALLEL OPERATIONS: No Customer shall operate or permit operation of electric generating equipment in parallel with electric service supplied by the Company except as may be permitted under the Customer's service agreement.

**4.15 OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS:**

1. Interconnection engineering study or studies are required and shall be conducted by Company for all distributed generation interconnections greater than 500kW. In certain instances, studies may be required for distributed generation interconnections less than 500 kW. All study fees are non-refundable, whether or not the customer decides to pursue the project. A DER interconnection application will not be deemed complete until the DER interconnection engineering study fee, if applicable, is received by the Company. The following table lists the application fees required by DER capacity.

**Deleted:** rare

**Deleted:** will

2. DER Interconnection Engineering Study Fees

Program	Less than 500kW	500kW-1MW	1MW-5MW	5MW-10MW	Greater than 10MW
Parallel Generation	\$1,500 or no charge	\$1,500	\$2,000	\$2,500 + \$1/kW	\$3,000 + \$1/kW

**Deleted:** 5. MULTIPLE OCCUPANCY PREMISES¶

¶ <#>INDIVIDUAL METERING FOR SEPARATE PREMISES: Except as otherwise provided in this Rule 5, or if the Commission has granted a variance pursuant to Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-20.050(5) permitting otherwise, the occupant of each separate premises in or on any multiple occupancy premises will be individually metered and supplied electric service as the Customer of the Company, which electric service shall be utilized by the Customer only for operation of the Customer's installation located in or on the separate premises for which such electric service is supplied pursuant to the Customer's service agreement.¶

For the engineering study fee chart above, the size (kW DC) of the generation is the total nameplate capacity of the generation system.

**Deleted:** 5.02 PUBLIC SERVICE METERING FOR LESSOR: All public service use in or on any multiple occupancy premises, where each separate premises therein is individually metered by the Company, will be separately metered and billed under an applicable non-residential rate schedule. Such public service use may include the electric requirements of all common areas and equipment in or on such multiple occupancy premises and the electric requirements of any separate premises therein occupied by the lessor or manager. Where, in any building used for residential purposes, the public service use consists solely of incidental hall or entrance way lighting, such public service use may for billing purposes be combined with the residential use of any separate premises therein so designated by the lessor.¶

¶

DATE OF ISSUE: January 7, 2022  
ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President

DATE EFFECTIVE: February 6, 2022  
Kansas City, Mo. 64105

Public

**Deleted:** August 28, 2013

**Deleted:** September 27, 2013

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~9th~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.28

Deleted: Eighth

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~8th~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.28

Deleted: Seventh

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**RULES AND REGULATIONS  
ELECTRIC**

**BILLING AND PAYMENT (continued)**

**8.07 RETURN PAYMENT CHARGE:** A charge not to exceed \$30.00 may be assessed when a Customer's payment is returned due to any reason other than bank error.

**8.08 COLLECTION CHARGE:** When it is necessary for a representative of Company to visit the service address for the purpose of disconnecting electric service and the representative collects the delinquent payment amount a Collection Charge in the amount of \$20.00 shall be assessed to the customer.

**8.09 OPT-OUT PROVISIONS:** Pursuant to Missouri Rule 4 CSR 240-20.094(7)(A): Any customer meeting one (1) or more of the following criteria shall be eligible to opt-out of participation in utility-offered demand side programs:

Deleted: NON-MEEIA

Deleted: 6

1. The customer has one (1) or more accounts within the service territory of the electric utility that has a demand of the individual accounts of five thousand (5,000) kW or more in the previous twelve (12) months;
2. The customer operates an interstate pipeline pumping station, regardless of size; or
3. The customer has accounts within the service territory of the electric utility that have, in aggregate across its accounts, a coincident demand of two thousand five hundred (2,500) kW or more in the previous twelve (12) months, and the customer has a comprehensive demand-side or energy efficiency program and can demonstrate an achievement of savings at least equal to those expected from utility-provided programs.
  - A. For utilities with automated meter reading and/or advanced metering infrastructure capability, the measure of demand is the customer coincident highest billing demand of the individual accounts during the twelve (12) months preceding the opt-out notification.

A customer electing to opt-out under requirements 1 and 2 above must provide written notice to the electric utility no earlier than September 1 and not later than October 30 to be effective for the following calendar year. Customers electing to opt-out under requirement 3 above must provide notice to the utility and the manager of the energy resource analysis section of the commission during the stated timeframe. Customers electing to opt-out shall still be allowed to participate in interruptible or curtailable rate schedules or tariffs offered by the electric utility.

Customers who have satisfied the opt-out provisions of 4 CSR 240-20.094(7) to opt-out of the DSIM Charge rate will not be charged the DSIM Charge.

Deleted: 6

Deleted: Non-MEEIA rate will receive an offset of the Non-MEEIA rate amount on the same bill, based on their actual usage. The Non-MEEIA rate is \$0.00068 per kWh....

**8.10 RESIDENTIAL TIME-VARIANT RATE SCHEDULES:** For residential rate schedules which require cumulative usage be determined for unique time periods during a billing period and usage is determined through interval metering data, beginning and ending meter readings for that billing period may not be utilized in lieu of the interval metering data. In such cases, a customer's bill will reflect the total consumption for each relevant time period but will not indicate a beginning or ending meter reading for the cumulative billing period, pursuant to the variance from Rules 20 CSR 4240-13.020 (9) (A) granted by Commission in File No. ET-2020-0133. The Company will retain for a minimum of five years the meter information relied upon to generate bills for such customers.

Issued: January 7, 2020  
Issued by: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President

Effective: February 6, 2020  
1200 Main, Kansas City, MO 64105

Deleted: July 1, 2020

Deleted: July 31, 2020

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. Mo. 2 1st Revised Sheet No. 1.59

Cancelling P.S.C. MO. 2 Original Sheet No. 1.59

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  
APPLYING TO ELECTRIC SERVICE**

**17. EMERGENCY ENERGY CONSERVATION PLAN**

17.01 ANTICIPATED EMERGENCY: In the event of emergency conditions which may result in (a) an inability by the Company to meet all electric requirements of its customers, or (b) generating capability or transmission capability becoming insufficient to serve the load requirements of the Company or the interconnected systems of which the Company's system is a part, the Company may, upon direction by the Balancing Authority, implement an Emergency Energy Conservation Plan pursuant to this Rule 17. Notice by the Company to the Commission will take place as soon as practical.

The Company Emergency Energy Conservation Plan has been defined within a Load Management and Manual Load Shed Plan (Plan). The Plan complies with North American Electric Reliability Corporation (NERC) Standard EOP-011-1 concerning Emergency Operations and is reviewed by the regional transmission organization Reliability Coordinator for the interconnected systems of which the Company's system is a part.

17.02 **PLAN COMPONENTS:** The Company Plan includes the following:

- Defined Balancing Authority Operating Levels – regional transmission organization operating plans and NERC Energy Emergency Alert levels
- Defined Essential Services – critical circuits for the operation of the system and critical loads essential to the health, safety, and welfare of the communities the Company serves, exempt from the Plan, depending on the circumstances of the event and at the discretion of Company
- Emergency Alert Level Response Plans – defines actions to be taken under the various Energy Emergency Alert Levels. Actions may include operational changes, load curtailments, communications and the initiation of other related Company emergency plans
- Manual Load Shed Plan – defines actions to be taken in response to load shed orders from the regional transmission organization Balancing Authority
- Transmission Emergency Load Shed Plan – defines actions to be taken to relieve transmission overload condition(s) or low voltage conditions.

This Plan does not cover all possible emergency conditions which may arise including underfrequency conditions, and it is not intended to prevent the Company from exercising its authority when, in the judgment of personnel implementing the plan, other such actions are required.

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:**

**Formatted:** Font: 11 pt

**Formatted Table**

**Deleted:** In the event emergency conditions are anticipated by the Company on its system or on the interconnected electric systems of which the Company's system is a party, which conditions may result in (a) an inability by the Company to meet all electric requirements of its customers, or (b) a general inability by the interconnected system to meet all electric requirements of customers on the interconnected systems of which the Company's system is a part, due to a lack of (i) available electric generating capacity or (ii) fuels therefore, and an emergency has been duly declared on account thereof by proper State or Federal authorities having jurisdiction, the Company may, upon written notice by the Company to the Commission, implement an Emergency Energy Conservation Plan pursuant to this Rule 17....

**Deleted:** ¶

**Deleted:** CUSTOMER NOTIFICATION:

**Deleted:** The Company will give prompt notice to its customers of the implementation of this Emergency Energy Conservation Plan by appropriate releases to the news media and, to the extent practical and in accordance with procedures deemed appropriate by the Company, by direct contact (telephonic, written or personal) with its large commercial and industrial customers who will be advised that this Emergency Energy Conservation Plan has been implemented by the Company.¶

<#> EXEMPT FACILITIES: Customers operating facilities of the type listed in this Rule 17.03 shall be exempt from application of the Company's Emergency Energy Conservation Plan, provided such customers undertake the reduction of electric energy usage to the fullest extent practical consistent with continued operation of such facility to provide the services, functions, or activities for which such customer is responsible.¶

<#>Any facility whose function is necessary to the support of life, such as, but not limited to:¶

¶  
<#>hospital services and nursing homes, or¶  
<#>non-hospital life sustaining facilities, including iron lungs, kidney machines and shaker¶  
beds.¶

Any facility whose function is necessary for national, state or local security, such as, but not limited to:¶

¶  
missile sites,¶  
defense communication network centers,¶

**Deleted:** March 16, 1978

**Deleted:** March 20, 1978

**Deleted:** L. C. Rasmussen¶  
Vice President

**Deleted:** 1201 Walnut

**Deleted:** 64106

DATE OF ISSUE: January 7, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: February 6, 2022  
ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, Mo. 64105

Public



**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 1st Revised Sheet No. 1.60  
Cancelling P.S.C. MO. 2 Original Sheet No. 1.60  
For Missouri Retail Service Area

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY/EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a

**Formatted:** Font: Times New Roman, 11 pt

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:** Rate Areas No. 1 and No. 3

**GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  
APPLYING TO ELECTRIC SERVICE**

**17. EMERGENCY ENERGY CONSERVATION PLAN (continued)**

17.03 CUSTOMER NOTIFICATION: The Company will give prompt notice to its customers of the implementation of this Emergency Energy Conservation Plan by appropriate releases to the news media and, to the extent practical and in accordance with procedures deemed appropriate by the Company, by direct contact (telephonic, written or personal) with its large commercial and industrial customers who will be advised that this Emergency Energy Conservation Plan has been implemented by the Company.

17.04 DAILY MONITORING: Upon implementation by the Company of its Emergency Energy Conservation Plan under this Rule 17, the Company will follow the direction of the regional transmission organization Balancing Authority to continue the Emergency Energy Conservation Plan. The Company will notify the Commission and its customers when it intends to end actions taken under the Emergency Energy Conservation Plan.

17.05 LIABILITY OF COMPANY: The Company shall not be considered in default of its service agreement and shall not otherwise be liable to any customer or other person by reason of implementation by the Company of any or all of the procedures described in this Rule 17.

17.06 PLAN MAINTENANCE: The Company shall review the Plan regularly and if revised, will submit the Plan to the regional transmission organization Reliability Coordinator as required for NERC compliance. After Reliability Coordinator review is complete, the Company will make the revised Plan available to Commission Staff.

**Deleted:** 17.03 EXEMPT FACILITIES: (continued)

¶  
¶  
(c) Any facility whose function is necessary to provide essential public services, such as, but not limited to:¶

- ¶
- <#>police and fire control facilities,¶
- <#>essential public services, including water, telephone, gas, trash and sewage services,¶
- <#>transportation facilities,¶
- <#>communications media,¶
- <#>fuels and energy supply facilities,¶
- <#>food processing, storage and distribution facilities,¶
- <#>medical supply facilities, or¶
- <#>community centers used to house groups of persons affected by curtailment of electric or other forms of public service.¶

¶  
17.04 DAILY MONITORING: upon implementation by the Company of its Emergency Energy Conservation Plan under this Rule 17, the Company will monitor daily the need for continuation thereof and/or the need to implement, as the Company in its sole discretion deems appropriate, further action hereunder in the following stages.¶

¶  
17.05 FIRST STAGE CONSERVATION: The first stage in energy conservation will be directed at securing voluntary reductions in energy usage by all Company customers to the extent that such reductions do not endanger health, safety or employment within the Company's service territory, and will include the following:¶

¶  
<#>The Company will reduce its own usage of electric energy in any way that will not jeopardize essential operations.¶

¶  
<#>The Company will make public appeals through appropriate news media, asking all customers to voluntarily reduce their usage of electric energy.¶

¶  
<#>The Company will request all its wholesale electric customers to seek voluntary curtailments on their systems.¶

¶  
<#>The Company will contact large commercial and industrial customers and request voluntary curtailment of energy without causing work force reductions.¶

¶

DATE OF ISSUE: January 7, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: February 6, 2022  
ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1201 Walnut, Kansas City, Mo. 64106

**Deleted:** March 16, 1978

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:** March 20, 1978

**Deleted:** L. C. Rasmussen¶  
Vice President

Public

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 ~~1st~~ Revised Sheet No. 1.61

Cancelling P.S.C. MO. ~~2~~ Original Sheet No. ~~1.61~~

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  
APPLYING TO ELECTRIC SERVICE**

**RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE**

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:** Rate Areas No. 1 and No. 3

**Deleted:** ~~EMERGENCY ENERGY CONSERVATION PLAN (continued)~~

**Deleted:** ~~FIRST STAGE CONSERVATION: (continued)~~

~~(e) The Company will require elimination of outdoor flood lighting, advertising and decorative lighting, except for the minimum level necessary to protect life and property, and permitting a single illuminated sign identifying commercial facilities that are open after dark.~~

~~(f) The Company will request reduction in parking lot lighting, street and alley lighting, and dusk-to-dawn lighting to minimum functional and safety levels where practical.~~

~~(g) The Company will request adjustment of work schedules for building cleaning, maintenance, restocking, etc., which require office or industrial facilities to be lighted, heated or cooled beyond normal office of plant hours.~~

~~SECOND STAGE CONSERVATION: If further voluntary energy conservation efforts are necessary in the judgment of the Company, it will request its customers to:~~

~~curtail sports, entertainment and recreational activities consistent with energy conservation; e.g., eliminate sports events requiring lighting and close theaters requiring energy for heating or cooling facilities;~~

~~reduce hours of operation, or close, all public museums, art galleries, historic buildings, and other nonessential facilities requiring lighting, heating or cooling;~~

~~reduce usage of electricity in residences, stores, offices and factories to minimum functional and safety levels, by reduction of general lighting levels, the number of elevators operating during non-peak hours and the elimination of show windows, display and other decorative lighting;~~

~~minimize energy usage in all commercial, industrial and residential establishments by maintaining a temperature of no more than 65°F during operation of heating equipment, and no less than 80° F during operation of cooling equipment and by reducing the temperature level of heated water to 140° F or less; and~~

**Deleted:** March 16, 1978

**Deleted:** March 20, 1978

**Deleted:** L. C. Rasmussen  
Vice President

**Deleted:** 1201 Walnut

**Deleted:** 64106

DATE OF ISSUE: January 7, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: February 6, 2022  
ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, Mo. 64105

Public

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 1st Revised Sheet No. 1.62  
Cancelling P.S.C. MO. No. 2 Original Sheet No. 1.62  
For Missouri Retail Service Area

**RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE**

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT  
COMPANYEVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:**

**Deleted:** Rate Areas No. 1 and No. 3

**Deleted:** ¶

**Deleted:** GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS¶  
APPLYING TO ELECTRIC SERVICE¶

¶

**<#>EMERGENCY ENERGY CONSERVATION PLAN**  
(continued)¶

¶

17.06 SECOND STAGE CONSERVATION:  
(continued)¶

¶

(e) request commercial establishments, i.e.,  
department stores, shopping centers and the like, to  
operate on a schedule not to exceed six days per week  
with a maximum of 48 hours of operation per week,  
and¶

¶

(f) request all industrial and commercial facilities, and  
the City of Kansas City, Missouri, which are known to  
have emergency reduction plans, to implement such  
plans.¶

¶

17.07 MANDATORY CURTAILMENT: In the event  
that the voluntary energy conservation measures  
implemented under Rules 17.05 and 17.06 hereof are  
not adequate, in the judgment of the Company, to  
achieve the necessary level of energy conservation on  
its system, the Company may, at its discretion, request  
the Commission to approve mandatory energy  
curtailment under this Rule 17.07. Upon receipt of  
such Commission approval, the provisions of Rules  
17.05 and 17.06 shall become mandatory and binding  
on all the Company's customers. In the event of failure  
by any customer to comply thereafter with the  
provisions of this Rule 17.07, electric service to such  
customer may be discontinued by the Company unless  
the facilities are exempt under Rule 17.03 hereof.  
Additionally, the following mandatory energy  
curtailment steps may be implemented as requested by  
the Company and approved by the Commission.¶

¶

**<#>effect system voltage reductions up to 5%;¶**

¶

**<#>deenergize circuits on a manual rotation basis,**  
except circuits which include exempt facilities under  
Rule 17.03 hereof;¶

¶

**<#>direct industrial customers with relatively few**  
employees, but large electric energy usage, to cease  
operations, except as necessary for safety and  
security;¶

¶

**<#>direct all other industrial customers to curtail**  
monthly usage of electric service by at least 30% of  
their respective average monthly usage during the  
preceding 12 full calendar months;¶

**Deleted:** March 16, 1978

**Deleted:** March 20, 1978

**Deleted:** L. C. Rasmussen¶  
Vice President

**Deleted:** 1201 Walnut

**Deleted:** 64106

DATE OF ISSUE: January 7, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: February 6, 2022  
ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, Mo. 64105

Public

**EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY MISSOURI METRO**

P.S.C. MO. No. 2 1st Revised Sheet No. 1.63

Cancelling P.S.C. MO. 2 Original Sheet No. 1.63

For Missouri Retail Service Area

**Deleted:** KANSAS CITY POWER & LIGHT COMPANY/EVERGY METRO, INC. d/b/a EVERGY

**Deleted:** ☒

**Deleted:** Original

**Deleted:** Rate Areas No. 1 and No. 3

**GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS  
APPLYING TO ELECTRIC SERVICE**

**RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE**

**Deleted:** <#>EMERGENCY ENERGY CONSERVATION PLAN (continued)¶

¶  
<#>MANDATORY CURTAILMENT: (continued)¶

¶  
(f) direct all industrial and commercial customers to further curtail usage of electric service, on a progressive reduction basis, as may be required to that level needed for employee and plant safety and security.¶

¶  
17.08 LIABILITY OF COMPANY: The Company shall not be considered in default of its service agreement and shall not otherwise be liable to any customer or other person by reason of implementation by the Company of any or all of the procedures described in this Rule 17.¶

¶

DATE OF ISSUE: January 7, 2022 DATE EFFECTIVE: February 6, 2022

ISSUED BY: Darrin R. Ives, Vice President 1200 Main, Kansas City, Mo. 64105

**Deleted:** March 16, 1978

**Deleted:** March 20, 1978

**Deleted:** L. C. Rasmussen¶  
Vice President

**Deleted:** 1201 Walnut

**Deleted:** 64106

Public